NILES-BUCHANAN-CASS AREA TRANSPORTATION STUDY TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITEE and POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING

June 27, 2023 1:30 pm

In Person: Niles District Library

620 E Main St, Niles, MI 49120

Web: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/9489277047?pwd=RzkydlFacGFHNkVWeURpak1kSEcxUT09

Audio: Call in Number: 1 (312) 626-6799

Meeting ID: 948 927 7047

Passcode: 000619

AGENDA

- 1. Call to Order and Roll Call
- 2. Changes to the Agenda
- 3. Public Comment
- 4. Approve Minutes from the May 23, 2023 Meeting Action

pg. 3

- 5. Staff Report
- 6. Local Agency Updates
- 7. MPO Consideration of Capped to Pro-rata for remainder of FY 2023 Action

Pg. 7

- 8. Transit Updates
- 9. MDOT Updates
- 10. Reliability Performance Targets Action

Pg. 8

- 11. NATS 2050 Long Range Plan *Action* https://www.swmpc.org/2050natslrtp.asp
- 12. Privilege of the Floor or Public Comment
- 13. Adjournment

Comments can be sent prior to the meeting to Brandon Kovnat at kovnatb@swmpc.org or by calling (269) 925-1137 x 1524. For questions about accessibility or to request accommodations, please contact Kim Gallagher at (269) 925-1137 x 1518 or by email at gallagherk@swmpc.org

NATS Technical Advisory Committee and Policy Committee Voting Membership and Attendance – June 2023

Member Agency	Current Representative	TAC	POL	Jan	Mar	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec
Berrien Co. Board of Commissioners (1)	Michael Majerek		х	Α	Α	٧							
Berrien Co. Board of Commissioners (2)	VACANT		х	Α									
Berrien Co. Community Dev. Dept.	VACANT	x		Α	Α								
Berrien Co. Planning Commission	Eric Lester, M.D.		х	Α	Α	٧							
Berrien Co. Road Dept. (Policy)	VACANT		х	Α									
Berrien Co. Road Dept. (TAC)	Kevin Stack	Χ		IP	IP	Α							
Bertrand Township	Butch Payton	Х	х	Α	IP	IP							
Buchanan Township	Lynn Ferris	х	х	Α	IP	IP							
Cass Co. Board of Commissioners (1)	James Lawrence		х	Α	Α	Α							
Cass Co. Board of Commissioners (2)	Roseann Marchetti		х	IP	Α	IP							
Cass Co. Planning Commission	Roseann Marchetti	Х				IP							
Cass Co. Road Commission (Policy)	Sandra Seanor (POL. V Ch.)		х	IP	IP								
Cass Co. Road Commission (TAC)	Joe Bellina (TAC Ch.)	Х		IP	IP	IP							
City of Buchanan	Don Ryman		х	V	IP	IP							
City of Buchanan	Rich Murphy	х		Α	IP	IP							
City of Niles (1)	Georgia Boggs		х	IP	Α	Α							
City of Niles (2)	Serita Mason		Х	V	V	Α							
City of Niles (3)	VACANT		х										
City of Niles Community Dev.	Ryan Millin	Х				IP							
City of Niles Dial-A-Ride Transit	Pepper Miller	Х	Х	IP	IP	IP							
City of Niles Public Works /Airport	Joe Ray (TAC V. Ch.)	x		IP	IP	IP							
Howard Township	Bill Kasprzak	Х	х	IP	IP	Α							
Mason Township	Doug Fetters	x	х	Α	Α	Α							
MDOT - Bureau of Trans. Planning	Jim Sturdevant	Х	х	IP	IP	IP							
MDOT - Southwest Region	Josh Grab	Х	х	V	V	IP							
MDOT - Southwest Region (Alt)	Maddy Thorburn	Alt	Alt			IP							
MDOT - Transportation Service Center	Jonathon Smith	Х	х	V	V	V							
Milton Township	Susan Flowers	Х	х	Α	IP	IP							
Niles Charter Township	Richard Cooper (POL. Ch.)	Х	х	IP	IP	Α							
Ontwa Township	Dawn Bolock	Х	х	Α	Α	IP							
Pokagon Band of Potawatomi Indians	VACANT	х	х										
Village of Edwardsburg	Dennis Peak	X	х	Α	Α	Α							

Attendance Key: A = Absent, IP = Attended In person, V = Attended virtually

Notes: Attendance is listed for the organization not the current representative.

Niles Buchanan Cass Area Transportation Study

JOINT TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE AND POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING
Tuesday, May 23, 2023 – 1:30 PM
Niles District Library, Niles MI

Attendance	Name	Representing	TAC	POL
Committee	Joe Bellina Cass County Road Commission		Х	
Members Present	Butch Payton	Bertrand Township	Х	Х
	Lynn Ferris	Buchanan Township	Х	Х
	Roseann Marchetti	Cass County Board of Commissioners		Х
	Sandra Seanor	Cass County Road Commission		Х
	Don Ryman	City of Buchanan		Х
	Rich Murphy	City of Buchanan	Х	
	Pepper Miller	Niles Dial A Ride	х	Х
	Joe Ray	City of Niles	Х	
	Jim Sturdevant	MDOT, Statewide Planning	X	Х
	Josh Grab	MDOT, Southwest Region	х	Х
	Susan Flowers	Milton Township	х	Χ
	Dawn Bolock	Ontwa Township	х	Х
Staff	Kim Gallagher	SWMPC		
	Brandon Kovnat	SWMPC		
	Jacklyn Alsbro	SWMPC		
Others Present	Ryan Millin	City of Niles		
	Maddy Thorburn	MDOT, Southwest Region		
	Catherine Parker	MDOT, Statewide Planning		
Attending Michael Majerek Berrien Cou		Berrien County Board of Commissioners		Х
Virtually	Eric Lester, M.D.	Berrien Co. Planning Commission		
	Jonathon Smith	MDOT, Coloma TSC	х	
	Fred Featherly	MDOT, Office of Passenger Transportation	х	
	Michael Schwartz	Prien Newhoff for the City of Buchanan		

1. Call to Order and Roll Call

Technical Advisory Committee chair, Joe Bellina, called the meeting to Order at 1:30 pm. Kim Gallagher took roll call.

2. Changes to the Agenda

Bellina noted that the NATS bylaws state that elections for committee chair and vice chair are supposed to occur in January of odd-numbered years, but that no election was held so far in 2023. He asked to add elections to the agenda before Privilege of the Floor.

3. Public Comment

None.

4. Approve Minutes from the March 28, 2023, Meeting

Seanor commented on inaccuracies in the membership list. Several representatives have not been updated. Gallagher said she would contact each agency to confirm who their appointed representative is.

Motion to approve the minutes from the March 28, 2023, Joint NATS Technical Advisory Committee and Policy Committee Meeting. Made by Joe Bellina, and seconded by Susan Flowers. **Motion approved.**

5. Staff Report

Transportation Funding Workshop Gallagher announced that this summer SWMPC would be hosting a regional workshop on transportation funding with Bill Hamilton, a House Fiscal Agency Senior Fiscal Analyst. The exact date and time are being finalized.

2020 Urban Boundaries: Gallagher and Kovnat presented the 2020 Urban Area adjustment process. To make these adjustments, MDOT will schedule a meeting with SWMPC, and local jurisdictions this summer.

Pavement Condition Rating: Gallagher announced that pavement condition ratings would occur for the NATS area this summer. She will email Cass County Road Commission, and Berrien County Road Department next week to schedule the rating dates. Comments were made asking why MDOT no longer participates in the ratings. There was agreement that a three-person crew is safer and more accurate. Gallagher explained that SWMPC receives a budget for pavement condition rating from the Transportation Asset Management Council (TAMC) which pays for each of the rating crew's time; without MDOT staff participation, the funds could instead be used to pay for additional County or SWMPC staff. The response was that regardless of budget, the County agencies do not have staff to spare.

Berrien County Air Quality Redesignation: Kovnat gave a presentation about Berrien County being redesignated from Marginal nonattainment to Moderate nonattainment for failure to meet the national Ozone standards by the required date. This redesignation has new requirements for emission control from facilities, which could harm the county's economy. The source of the emissions is carryover across Lake Michigan and due to wind patterns, local emissions reductions will likely have limited effects on the county's ozone level. There is no effect on transportation funding due to the redesignation. It is probable based on trends that Berrien County will achieve attainment in the next several years. If this occurs it will cause a reduction for the CMAQ program.

6. Local Agency Updates

Refer to Meeting Packet Page 6

- Berrien County Road Department: No representative was present to give an update.
- City of Buchanan: Rich Murphy and Michaels Swartz gave an update on the Front Street reconstruction and signal replacement. The review process and bidding for these projects are occurring together. The Complete biddable package was submitted last week. The project could be on the July letting. The total cost for the Front Street Reconstruction has increased due to higher prices. Swartz added that MDOT had also required some of the project areas which had been categorized under "nonparticipating" to be moved to the "participating" budget.
- Cass County Road Commission: Joe Bellina gave an update on the Gumwood Roundabout &
 Realignment projects. The Roundabout for the eastern intersection of Gumwood and Redfield has been
 added to the June I2023 letting date. The Gumwood Realignment is still under review. Bellina said that
 the Grade Inspection meeting had been scheduled. He said he has some concerns that the project
 could not be obligated in 2023 opening up the funding for use in FY 2023

Proposals for utilizing NATS funding: MDOT said there were \$11,849 in Highway Infrastructure Program (HIP) funds that needed to be used in 2023 before they expire. Unlike the STBG funds, which do not carryover, past years bid savings from the HIP program could be reprogrammed until they expire at the end

of FY 2023. With the \$339,282 from the Gumwood project and the Hip funds, there is a total of \$351,514 to program in FY 2023.

Bellina explained his proposal to move the Gumwood Realignment to FY 2024 by swapping it with the City of Niles Wayne Street Project. He also requested to use the remaining FY 2024 STBG funds of \$82,000 to keep the NATS funding for Gumwood approximately the same.

Joe Ray gave an update on the Wayne Street project. The Grade inspection package was submitted on May 5th and the GI meeting is scheduled for__. He assured the committee that the project could get obligated by August.

Murphy said that since the Front Street project has already been approved by MDOT it is a safer bet.

There was discussion that Front Street had already received a large amount of NATS funding compared to how much a typical NATS-funded project receives. Committee members expressed a desire to keep the funding for all three projects approximately the same.

Motion For the Technical Advisory Committee to recommend that the Policy Committee approve:

For the **Gumwood Reconstruction** (JN 218476)

- 1) Move the project to 2024
- 2) Allocate \$334,514 of FY 2024 NATS STBG, which includes the \$254,514 originally programmed for Wayne Street and the Unprogrammed funds in 2024 of \$82,000

For the Wayne Street Project (JN 216092)

- 1) Move Project to 2023
- 2) Approve the increase to the total estimated cost.
- 3) Allocate \$339,282 in FY 2023 NATS STBG and \$11,849 in HIP

For the Front Street Reconstruction (JN 206394)

1) Approve the changes to the limits and total project cost for the Buchanan Front Street Reconstruction; no change in the NATS FY 2023 STBG funds.

Made Susan Flowers and seconded by Dawn Bolock Motion Approved

Motion for the Policy Committee to approve the recommendation from the Technical Advisory Committee. Made by Roseann Marchetti and seconded by Dawn Bolock. **Motion approved.**

7. Transit Updates

Pepper Miller gave an update for Niles Dial A Ride. Replacement buses have been purchased.

8. MDOT Updates

Refer to Meeting Packet Page 10 – There were no questions or comments on the updates included in the packet.

9. MDOT Amendment Requests

Refer to Meeting Packet Page 10

There were no questions or comments on the MDOT project amendments included in the packet.

Motion for the Technical Advisory Committee to recommend that the Policy Committee approve the MDOT project amendments to the NATS 2023-2026 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) as presented. Made by Joe Ray and seconded by Jim Sturdevant. **Motion approved.**

Motion for the Policy Committee to approve the recommendation from the Technical Advisory Committee. Made by Susan Flowers and seconded by Pepper Miller. **Motion approved**

10. CMAQ Performance Targets

Refer to Meeting Packet Page 11

Kovnat presented the CMAQ Performance targets. The emission reduction targets are the statewide total based on all emission reduction estimations from CMAQ-funded projects throughout the state. The Peak Hour Excessive Delay and the Percent Non-Single occupancy Vehicle travel targets are only for the South Bend Urban Area. These were developed through a discussion between INDOT, MDOT, SWMPC, and MACOG based on recent trends and what they agreed was reasonably attainable.

Motion for the Technical Advisory Committee to recommend that the Policy Committee approved the 2022-2025 CMAQ Performance Targets as included in the meeting packet. Made by Joe Ray and seconded by Jim Sturdevant. **Motion approved**.

Motion for the Policy Committee to approve the recommendation from the Technical Advisory Committee. Made by Susan Flower, and seconded by Pepper Miller. **Motion approved.**

11. FY 2024 Unified Work Program

Gallagher discussed the NATS FY 2024 Unified Work Program, which lists the transportation planning tasks SWMPC staff will conduct for the NATS Area. Most of these are the same every year. The special project for 2024 will be an Electric Vehicle readiness plan, which will focus on the local and regional steps needed for increasing EV adoption. Gallagher presented an EV toolkit that shows EV changer locations in Michigan by jurisdiction. Currently Southwest Michigan has 37 charging locations. Comments were made about the barriers to EVs which include the state of the electrical grid and equipment shortages.

Motion for the Technical Advisory Committee to recommend that the Policy Committee approve the NATS FY 2024 Unified Work Program and support the submission of the UWP to the SWMPC Board with any minor changes requested by MDOT. Made by Joe Ray and seconded by Jim Sturdevant.

Motion for the Policy Committee to approve the recommendation from the Technical Advisory Committee. Made by Dawn Bolock and seconded by Susan Flowers. **Motion approved.**

12. Election of Committee Officers

Motion for the Technical Advisory Committee to reelect Joe Bellina to serve as Technical Advisory Committee Chair and Joe Ray to serve as Technical Advisory Committee Vice Chair. Made by Joe Bellina and seconded by Susan Flowers. **Motion approved**

Motion for the Policy Committee to reelect Richard Cooper to serve as Policy Committee Chair and Sandra Seanor to serve as Policy Committee Vice Chair. Made by Dawn Bolock and seconded by Jim Sturdevant. **Motion approved**

13. Privilege of the Floor or Public Comment

None.

14. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 3:15 PM. The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, June 27, 2023.

Minutes compiled by Brandon Kovnat, SWMPC Transportation Planner

Capped Versus Pro-Rata Funding Mechanism Explanation

Capped: Federal funds are *Capped* at the programmed amount approved by the MPO committee (i.e. NATS). If the project costs exceed what is programmed, federal funds do not increase at the time of obligation or letting.

Pro-Rata: Also known as uncapped. When a project is obligated if the construction estimate is higher than what is programmed, or when a project s let if the accepted bid exceeds the estimate, the federal funding increases proportionally (*pro-rata*). The initial federal/local funding split is maintained.

Details

- Every MPO is given an annual Target Allocation of STBG which is the maximum that can be programed to.
- MPOs also have a <u>Carryover Balance which</u> is the result of bid savings or unprogrammed funding from previous years.
- If an MPO is Pro-rata, additional federal funds at obligation or letting are charged to the MPO's carryover
- Only if an MPO runs out of carryover funds will overages be charged against the current year's allocation.
- The <u>maximum overage allowed is 24.9%;</u> Any cost change by 25% or more (up or down) requires an amendment.

Example

Consider the hypothetical project on Main Street, Anytown, USA. The project is programmed in a TIP with an estimated cost of \$100,000 funded by 70% STBG and 30% local match. The lowest bid for construction came in 15% over at \$115,000.

	Due suggested Amount	Actual Bid Amount				
	Programmed Amount	Capped	Pro-Rata			
Total Cost	\$100,000	\$115,000	\$115,000			
Federal	\$70,000	\$70,000	\$80,500			
Local	\$30,000	\$45,000	\$34,500			
Increase in the local match		\$15,000	\$4,500			
Percent Increase to the local match		50%	15%			

If Capped, the 15% cost increase which is \$15,000 is borne completely by the local agency. When prop-Rata the federal funds and local funds increase by 15%. The initial federal/local split (in this case 70/30) is maintained.

If costs come in under the programmed amount, whether capped or pro-rata, the federal funding remains the same until a split of 81.85/18.15 is met and then federal funds decrease proportionally.

TRAVEL TIME RELIABILITY

What is Travel Time Reliability

Travel time reliability (TTR) measures how consistent travel time is from one point to another and from one day to the next. It is not a measure of the typical congestion on a road but the variability in congestion over time.

How is TTR Calculated:

- Travel time for each segment of the National Highway System (NHS) is measured and ranked from the shortest time (fastest speed) to the longest time (slowest speed).
- Reliability is determined by comparing the "normal" travel time (50th percentile) to either the 80th or 95th percentile travel time.
- If the difference between the normal travel time and the longer travel time is more than 50 percent, the segment is considered unreliable.
- The truck travel time measure applies only to the Interstate and uses the 95th percentile.

Example

- Suppose someone's normal travel time from home to work is 20 minutes.
- Supposed the 80th percentile travel time is 30 minutes or longer to travel to work about once per work week. $-1/5^{th}$ of the time = 80^{th} percentile
- If this person experiences 30 minutes or more of travel time to work in a typical week, the route would be considered unreliable -(30/20 = 1.5x)
- For trucks, the travel time measure uses the 95th percentile which is the top 5% slowest times or 1 out of 20 trips.

Federal Requirements

• The regulations require setting reliability targets for the percent of person-miles on the Interstate and non-Interstate NHS, where person-miles refers to the estimated number of people traveling, not necessarily the number of vehicles.

Based on past performance MDOT set the following statewide targets for Travel Time Reliability

Performance Measure	SWMPC 2021 Baseline*	Statewide 2021 Baseline	2 yr. Targets – 2023 Statewide	4 yr. Targets – 2025 Statewide
Percentage of the person-miles traveled on the Interstate that are reliable.	100%	97.10%	80.00%	80.00%
Percentage of the person-miles traveled on the non-Interstate NHS that are reliable.	95.9%	94.40%	75.00%	75.00%
Truck Travel Time Reliability (TTTR) Index (interstate only)	1.12	1.31	1.60	1.60